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2.1.4 William Jett II Mar Dorothy Kindred
22 Jul 1900 1934 5 May 1914
19 Sep 1961

2.1.5 Lucille Jett
9 Jan 1904
10 Oct 1979

2.2 Mary Crawford Jett Mar Milton C Covington
13 Mar 1859 16 Jan 1879 27 Jul 1856
27 Oct 1927 29 Mar 1930

2.2.1 Elizabeth Covington
21 May 1880
13 Sep 1956

2.2.2 Mary Quinn Covington
1 Mar 1890
7 Nov 1956

2.2.3 Louise Wodford Covington Mar Hasbrouck Haymes
24 May 1885
30 Dec 1919

2.2.4 Josephine Covington Mar Jack Phelps
15 May 1901 5 Jun 1892
16 Oct 1961 4 Mar 1961

2.3 Isaac Israel Jett III
Died of pneumonia at age five years.

Isaac Israel Jett Sr.

In the 1930's Mary Q Covington did research on the Jett family.
She felt Isaac Israel Jett was an officer in the Revolutionary
War, but could not find any information. In the 1970’s I
became involved in the search and still found nothing. William
Jett III owns the original land owned by Isaac Israel and Mary
Jett in Madison County, Kentucky in 1700’s.

Stephen Jett Jr. at sixteen joined the Kentucky Militia in
Madison County, KY. They marched to Fort Washington in Ohio.
In 1791 Stephen Jett was involved in the Battle later to be call
“St. Clair's Defeat”. In the 1850 census, Stephen said he was a
soldier in the St. Clair's War.

The Indians had soundly defeated St. Clair's army. President
George Washington demanded that General St. Clair resign
from the army. St. Clair did so on April 7, 1792. He, however,
remained governor of the Northwest Territory and still faced
problems with the natives.

The Story at Fort St. Clair

Fort Saint Clair near Eaton, Ohio, was established in December
1791 to protect the area against the threat of Indians. It served
as an important garrison and supply depot between Fort
Washington and Fort Jefferson. There were occasional raids
upon the livestock, and Indians attacked work parties outside
the Fort St. Clair, Major John Adair was assigned to deliver
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In Madison County a court paper dated July 30, 1791, states
that Mary Jett administrator for Isaac I. Jett, deceased, filed
suit against Stephen White. Isaac Sr. died before that date,
probable June of 1791. This, also, changes the date of birth of
Isaac Jr., as the previous date for the Isaac Sr. death was
1788. Mary Jett died in Madison County, Kentucky in 1820. She
was living with her son Isaac Israel at the time.

Isaac Jett Jr, died on January 29, 1865, at the age of seventy-
two. Holding with the above date of 1791 the date of birth for
Isaac Jr. would be about 1790. This would place his age at
death at seventy-five years. In the 1850 census places his age
at sixty-one and again at the time of death he would be
seventy-six. Isaac is buried on his farm near Union City in
Madison County, Kentucky. The land in the year 2000 is still in
the Jett family. William Jett III is the present owner.

We have not found a marriage for Mary and so do not know her
maiden name. It is interesting to note that in the area of
Kentucky (near Otter Creek) lived Stephen Jett who along with
James Mylar seem to interact with Mary Jett. Stephen Jett,
also, had two sisters living in the area Elizabeth Searcy and
Francis Searcy. Mary’s maiden name we believe was Letcher as
carried on by the grandchildren and great grandchildren. In
both cases the answer maybe in North Carolina.

CHILDREN OF ISAAC ISRAEL AND MARY JETT

1. Elizabeth Jett Mar George Swope
ca 1780 31 Jul 1800

2. Nancy Jett Mar Francis Gowin
ca 1783 16 Mar 1803

3. Henrietta Jett Mar James Mylar
1789 2 Oct 1806 1783

4. Isaac Israel Jett Jr. Mar Lorraine Crawford
1790 Nov 1850 2 Dec 1833
29 Jan 1865 20 Nov 1914

CHILDREN OF ISAAC ISRAEL JR. AND LORRAINE JETT

2.1 William Jett I Mar Callie Taylor
16 Nov 1857 1891 10 Jun 1870
12 Apr 1925 Sep 1952

2.1.1 Marguerite Jett Mar Edgar Shirley Gumm
1893 1917 1893
1951 1968

2.1.2 Isaac Jett Mar Martha Sharp
19 Aug 1895
30 Aug 1938

2.1.3 Mary C Jett

27 Aug 1898
1941
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17 Aug 1757 23 Apr 1729 1779
1827 1825

3. Mary Jett

4. Winifred Jett Mar Thomas Parham
1Jun 11782

5. John Jett Mar Ann Burns
1760 21 Oct 1778

1816 2nd Mar Naomy Webb
5 Apr 1787

6. Frances Jett Mar Asa Searcy
1765 1783

7. Stephen Jett Jr Mar Rachel Mylar

8. Amanda Jett Mar William Smith
16 Apr 1777 30 Apr 1775
26 Jul 1853 14 Apr 1866

Reference:
Genealogy: Jett Family by Otis Jett, 1988
Jett Trails West by Lois & Ernest Jett

ISAAC ISRAEL JETT AND MARY JETT

The Jett family as well as other families in the 1700’s lack
documentation. The best that can be done is an educated guess
based on interaction between family members. Most
researchers can discuss items and situation to arrive on a
popular consensus.

At the present there are many unknowns with this family. Mary
Q Covington did research in the 1930's and 40’s. One of her
saying was that “Isaac Jett Sr. was a officer in the
Revolutionary War”, but no information has been found.
Lorraine Jett was told by William Jett II that Isaac Israel Jett’s
people came from North Carolina. Some of the Mylar children
had Letcher as a middle name. We believe that Letcher was
Mary’s maiden name, but have no proof.

In the book Jett Trails West by Lois and Ernest Jett believe that
Mary Jett who married Isaac I Jett maybe the a daughter of
Stephen Jett Sr. and a sister of Stephen Jett Jr. with no proof
There are numerous times where Stephen Jett Jr interacts with
Mary and Isaac Jett's family. James Mylar signed the marriage
bond for Stephen, Stephen signed the bond for James Mylar,
Stephen Jett married Rachel Mylar, the sister of James Mylar.
James Mylar married Henrietta Jett daughter of Mary Jett.

We know that their daughter Henrietta Jett was born in
Virginia. The question is did they live in part of Virginia that
became Kentucky in 1792. No land or probate records can be
found in Madison County. The records in Fayette County were
destroyed by fire in 1803.

There is proof that Henrietta and Isaac Jr. were two of the
children of Isaac and Mary Jett. They lived in Madison County,
Kentucky.

Page 12 of 26
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15Jan 1818 14 May 1839
4 May 1878

3.5 Granville Jett
1820
7 Aug 1846

3.6 Elvira Jett Mar Oliver Crawford
23 Apr 1823
May 1895

3.7 Julia Ann Jett Mar Roger Spicer

12 May 1826

6 Jun 1874

Stephen Jett 2nd Mar Nancy Gibson

26 Mar 1827

JOHN JETT AND ANN WELLS

John was born in 1695, in Richmond County, Virginia and died
in 18 November 1771 in Culpeper County, Virginia. John's
parents are John Jett and Eliczabeth Tripiett.

Children of John and Ann Jett

1. William Jett Mar Susan Edger
d. 25 Sep 1801

. James Jett Mar Leanna ---
. Sep 17385

an

3. John Jett Mar Sarah Tapp
Ca 17251729
18 Apr 1808 1754

4. Stephen Jett Mar Elizabeth Reed
1735 1755

5. Margaret Jett Mar ---- Butler

6. Elizabeth Jett Mar --- Raoch

7. Mary Jett Mar Vincent Tapp

Reference:

Genealogy: Jett Family by Otis Jett, 1988
Jett Trails West by Lois & Ernest Jett
STEPHEN JETT SR AND ELIZABETH REED

Stephen Jett born 1735 hew lived in NC. Elizabeth was the
daughter of John Reed and Winifred Favour.

1. James Jett Mar Rosa Ann Gregory
ca 1756
1849

2. Elizabeth Jett Reuben Searcy widower his 2nd mar
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1791 First child born to Rachel and William Bryant. (Jeremiah)

1800 Census in Clark Co. KY - James Mylar (son of James
Mylar Sr. & RachelWilcoxson)

1805 Rachel and William Bryant in Madison County, KY.

1806 James Mylar married Henrietta Jett.

Rachel Mylar married Stephen Jett. Giving consent to the
marriage is her

mother, Rachel (Wilcoxson, Mylar) Bryant and Stepfather
William Bryant. One witness was Rachel’s brother James Mylar.

1818 ca Death of Rachel (Wilcoxson, Mylar) Bryant.
1826 Death of Rachel (Mylar) Jett.

1860 Grandson Jeremiah Bryant gives Draper “hear say”
information on the Bryant
Family.

1890 Rachel (Mylar) Kindred, in a book interview states, “I am
the great-grand niece
of Daniel Boone”,

1910 Julian Bryant gave miss information to Hazel Speaker, for
her Boone Book, on the Bryant family. Check the letter on page
118,

1934 An attempt was made to name the children of William
Bryant.

CHILDREN OF JAMES AND RACHEL MYLAR

1. James Mylar Mar Henrietta Jett
1783 2 Oct 1806 1789
See story on page 24

2. Unknown male b. 1785 - d. before 1800

3. Rachel Mylar Mar Stephen Jett
ca 1789 24 Feb 1806 ca 1775
ca 1826 Mar 1863

CHILDREN OF STEPHEN JETT AND RACHEL MYLAR

3.1 Newton Jett Mar Elizabeth Cloud
ca 1809
21 Mar 1874

3.2 Susanna Jett Mar Claibourne Crawford
5Jun 1812 5 Jun 1831

20 May 1866

3.2.1 Lorraine Crawford Mar Isaac Israel Jett Ir.
1833-1914 19 Nov 1850 1790-1865

3.3 Elizabeth Jett
ca 1816

3.4 Curtis Jett Mar Nancy Bryant
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Ray and Catherine Burgess in August 1986 found the marriage
consent document for Rachel Mylar to marry Stephen Jett in
Madison County, Kentucky. In this document Rachel Mylar is
the daughter of Rachel (Wilcoxson, Mylar) Briant.

In the above the (I) was crossed out and (we) inserted
meaning that more than one person was giving permission. In
the book Madison County Marriages 1786-1822 written in 1993,
Bill and Kathy Vockery stated that in the above consent form,
William and Rachel Briant are the parents of the bride, Rachel
Mylar. The marriage consent for Rachel Mylar and Stephen Jett
to marry was given by her mother, Rachel (Wilcoxson, Mylar)
Briant and stepfather William Briant. Neither Rachel (mother)
nor William Briant could read or write. James Milan, the
minister, wrote the form except for the two witnesses James
Ryley and James Mylar. The consent form stated, "sworn to"
this was a verbal agreement and a verbal consent for Rachel to
marry Stephen Jett by her parents. It was in the spelling of
Rachel Briant, William Briant, and Rachel Milar is the problem.
None are spelled correctly as this was the only time you see
this spelling. James Milan spelled the names with an "I" instead
of a "Y" in Mylar and Bryant.

Some authors and historians change the spelling of the Mylar
name. The name when pronounced the name sounds like Millar.
They changed the spelling of Mylar to Miller. In changing the
name, as spelled on a document, the names come out as
James (Mylar to Miller) and Rachel (Mylar to Miller). James
Mylar did sign his own name near the bottom as a witness to
the consent. Then they could call them father and daughter. In
reality James and Rachel are brother and sister. Giving
permission was her mother, Rachel Wilcoxson and stepfather
Wiltiam Briant.

Rachel Mylar married Stephen Jett in February, 1806, and her
brother, James Mylar, married Henrietta Jett in October, 1806.
Therefore, James Mylar could not be the father of Rachel Mylar.
James Mylar and James Ryley signed under the heading
(Teste). They were the witnesses to the marriage document. In
these days, the oldest brother in the family signed the consent
document as a witness, giving his approval of the marriage.
James Myilar is Rachel's brother.

TIME LINE

1763 Rachel Wilcoxson birth.

1781 Marriage of James Myiar Sr. and Rachel Wilcoxson in NC.
1783 First child - James Mylar Jr. born in South Carolina.
1780's James Mylar Sr. was a typical frontiersman, a friend of
Daniel Boone and assisted in the early development of
Kentucky.

1789 Death of James Mylar Sr. by Indians.
Birth of his daughter Rachel Mylar.

1790 Widow, Rachel (Wilcoxson) Miller and children are on the
census Rowan Co.

Marriage - Rachel (Wilcoxson) Mylar and William Bryant in
Rowan Co. NC.
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James Mylar Sr. and Rachel Wilcoxson had three known
children. James Mylar Jr., their first child, James was born in
South Carolina in about 1783. One male child was about 1785
and died before 1800. Rachel Mylar, their daughter, was born
in about 1789, Rachel Mylar married Stephen Jett on February
24, 1806, and James Mylar married Henrietta Jett on October
2, 1806. Both marriages were in Madison County, Kentucky.
Henrietta Jett was born in Virginia (later Kentucky) and was the
daughter of Isaac Israel Jett and Mary Letcher. This is based on
the fact Letcher is used as a middle name of some of the
children and grandchildren.

The James Mylar Sr. while in the wilderness in about 1789, was
kilted during an Indians attack.

In the books and articles of Ed Bates, Wilcoxson and Allied
Families by Dorothy Wulfack, Norma Nyberg of Missouri, and
“Boone’s Sierra Echoes” all list the probable children of William
Bryant. The names of the children were compiled by
descendant one hundred years after William’s death. Some
children are listed in the will of William Bryant. Another source
was John Ellis, when he was trying to settle the estate. Only
three of the children have known birthdays. There is no way to
prove or disprove the rest of the children of Rachel and William
Bryant. I am placing a letter in the appendix, it is on page 117,
from J Samuel Smart of New York who is related to R&W
Bryant. He believes that the children George, William, and
Elizabeth are niece and nephews of William Bryant, not his
children.

Rachel is established as a Wilcoxson related to the Boone
family. Her second marriage was to William Bryant. The
enclosed marriage consent document shows Rachel Bryant to
be the mother of Rachel Mylar. This confirms that Rachel had a
first marriage to a Mylar before that of William Bryant in 1790.
Additional letters on Bryant family please check page 117 and
118 for details.

Lydia (Neal) Mylar, in about 1906, decided to write down her
story of the Mylar family for her grandchildren. She states, "The
Mylar family was related to Daniel Boone by marriage”.

A quote from Some of Her Life Experiences by Dr. Owens-Adair
on page 213.

“Mrs. Rachel (Mylar) Kindred was born in Kentucky in 1822,
and is the great-grand niece of the celebrated Daniel Boone”.
Rachel is the daughter of James Mylar and Henrietta Jett.
James is the first son of James Mylar Sr. and Rachel Wilcoxson.

In order to be a great-grand niece of Daniel Boone the
relationship would be as follows.

Brother Sister

Daniel Boone Sarah Boone (M) John Wilcoxson

Niece Rachel Wilcoxson (M) James Mylar Sr.

Grand Nephew James Mylar (M) Henrietta Jett

Great-Grand Niece Rachel Mylar (M) B C Kindred
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JAMES AND RACHEL (WILCOXSON) MYLAR

The James Mylar Sr. was a typical frontiersman and a friend of
Daniel Boone, whom he helped in the early development of
Kentucky. One story is that he worked on the “Wilderness Trail”
which ran from South Carolina to Kentucky. At a later date it is
believed he was, also, a good friend of William Bryant.

James Mylar Sr. married Rachel Wilcoxson in 1781 in Rowan
County, North Carolina. Rachel was the daughter of John
Wilcoxson and Sarah Boone. The coupie moved from North
Carolina to South Carolina, where their first son James was
born about 1783. James Mylar Sr. was killed during an attack
by Indians in 1788-89,

Rachel (Wilcoxson) Mylar’s second marriage was to William
Bryant in 1790 in Rowan County, North Carolina. The Bryant's
first child was born in 1791. In the mid 1791 the family moved
to Kentucky

Let's see how other authors viewed the events.
The Boone Family by Hazel Spraker

Page 65) William Bryant led a group to Kentucky in 1775. "It is
quite possible that in the party of kindred were William Bryant
and his wife Rachel Wilcoxson”. Quite possible means that I do
not know. Rachel and William's first child was born in 1791. If
the above was true why or how would they wait eleven years to
have their first child in 1791 and then eight in twelve years?

Page 107) “Rachel Wilcoxson married William Bryant who was
born 1739 in Wales”. In William'’s application for a pension he
stated on June 25, 1833, his age was seventy-nine. "I was born
in Orange County, North Carolina, in 1754".

Page 108) “William Bryant was a captain in the Revolutionary
War under Colonel Todd and Boone”. William stated that he
was in the service in February 1780 for eight months as a
private under Captain Enoch Enochs. In January 1781, he was
in the service as a private under Captain Hemphill and Captain
John Dial. William was still a private in the military when he
was sent to New York in the winter of 1782 just before his
discharge.

Missouri Historical Review, vol 3, p 46, October 1908 - July
1909

William Bryant had returned to Kentucky at the close of the
Revolutionary War, “During these early times he took part in
several engagements with the Indians, holding the rank of
Captain under the command of Colonel Todd and Boone”. It is
doubtful because William Bryant could not read or even write
his name.

The dates have been reevaluated on the birth of Rachel
Wilcoxson to 1763 and the birth of her son James to be 1783.
In the 1700's a taxable person was a white male sixteen years
or older. James Jr. was on the Kentucky tax rolls in 1799 and
1800. He would have been seventeen in 1800 and twenty-three
when he married Henrietta Jett in 1806.
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13 Mar 1755 Oct 1780 15 July 1760
16 Jun 1837

9. Mary Wilcoxson
1756

10. Rachel Wilcoxson Mar James Mylar Sr.
1763 ab 1782

1821 ab 1789

See story on page 9

THREE KNOWN CHILDREN

10.1 James Mylar Jr. Mar Henrietta Jett
Abt. 1783 2 Oct 1806 1789

10.2 Mylar male child b. 1785 d. before 1800

10.3 Rachel Mylar Mar Stephen Jett
1789 - 1826 24 Feb 1806 1775 - 1863

In 1940 Elvira (Bryant) Helton (1877-1955) told her grandson,
George Wood, that Rachel Mylar, who married Stephen Jett,
was the great granddaughter of Squire Boone.

1790 census Yadkin Valley, Rowan Co. NC, on Bear Creek, lives
John Wilcoxson Sr. next door is John Jr. then a neighbor, and
widow, Rachel Miller. This is John's daughter the widow Rachel
(Wilcoxson) Mylar who lost her husband a year before. Rachel
could not read or write her name therefore Mylar was
pronounced Miltar. In Rachel’s family are 2 males under 16
years & 2 females.

Otis Jett, “The Widow Rachel Wilcoxson lived across Bear creek
from her mother and sister in law.”

Lydia (Neal) Mylar, in about 1906, decided to write down her
story of the Mylar family to give to her grandchildren. She
states, "The Mylar family was related to Daniel Boone by
marriage.”

A quote from Some of Her Life Experiences by Dr. Owens-Adair
on page 213.

“Mrs. Rachel (Mylar) Kindred was born in Kentucky in 1822,
and is the great-grand niece of the celebrated Daniel Boone”.
Rachel is the daughter of James Jr. and Henrietta Mylar. James
is the son of James Mylar Sr. and Rachel Wilcoxson.

10. Rachel (Wilcoxson) Mylar’s 2nd Mar William Bryant
Oct 1790 1754

1834

First Child: Jeremiah Bryant born, 20 August 1791

11. Samuel Wilcoxson Mar Anna Jordan
d. Nov 1825

12.william Wilcoxson
1762

13. Sarah Wilcoxson
1764
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JOHN AND SARAH (BOONE) WILCOXSON

Sarah Cassandra Boone was the daughter of Squire Boone and
Sarah Morgan. Sarah was born in June 7, 1724, in Bucks
County, Pennsylvania. John was the son of George Wilcoxson
and Eilzibeath Powell, born September 6, 1720, in Berks
County, Pennsylvania. Sarah married John Wilcoxson in Exeter,
Pennsylvania, on May 29, 1742. Because John was a non-
Quaker his family was censured by the church, and Sarah was
expelled.

John and Sarah moved to the Yadkin Valley, North Carolina,
and appeared on the tax list in 1759. In 1777 the family moved
to Boonesborough, Kentucky. John was not happy living in this
area and about a year later the family returned to Rowan
County, North Carolina.

The following is from Samuel Smart. Sarah Boone Wilcoxson is
on the DAR Patriot Index (D2) for Patriotic Service in Virginia.
Less than one percent of the entries are women. Sarah had a

close female relationship with two other women cited for
Patmsmr—gﬁla, her sister-in-law Rebecca Bryan
szmm
examples for service these three stand out as defending a fort,
defending a frontier and ren Yy
Boone Bryan was sited as a patriot of Kentucky who helped
defend the fort at Bryan Station.

John died in about 1800 in Rowan County. Sarah went to live
with her son Samuel Wilcoxson and died at the home of a
grandson, Jesse Wilcoxson, in Estill County, Kentucky in 1814.

CHILDREN OF JOHN AND SARAH WILCOXSON

1. Nancy Wilcoxson Mar Benjamin Greer
17 Mar 1743
3 Oct 1790

2. David Wilcoxson
22 Oct 1742
25 Feb 1832

3. John Wilcoxson Mar Sarah Nolson
6 Sep 1744 1780

4. George Wilcoxson Mar Elizabeth Beam
20 Jan 1754 20 Oct 1767
ab 1830

5. Isaac Wilcoxson
1753 10 Oct 1783

6. Elizabeth Wilcoxson Mar Benjamin Cutbirth
7. Israel Wilcoxson Mar Polly Fleming

1754

1780

8. Daniel Wilcoxson Mar Sarah Faulkner
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John Wilcockson
24 Sep 1688

Dorothy Wilcockson
28 Jan 1690

Isaac Wilcockson
16 Nov 1691

George Wilcockson Mar Elizabeth Powell
31 May 1695 15 Apr 1686 10 Mar 1695

David Wilcockson
Nov 1698

GEORGE WILCOXSON AND ELIZABETH POWELL

George was the son of John Wilcoxson and Dorothy Hall.
George was born on 31 May 1695, in Staffordshire, England. He
arrived in America before 1718 in Pennsylvania. He married
Elizabeth Powell in Chester County, Pennsylvania, 15 April
1718:

Elizabeth was born in Chester County on 10 March 1695. Her
parents were Rowland Powell born 1670 in Wales. He married
Maud Richards, born 1670 in Llanllweh, Wales on 19 March
1694.

George died in 1739 in Chester County, PA. Elizabeth about a
year later in 1740.

CHILDREN OF GEORGE AND ELIZABETH WILCOXSON

John Wilcoxson Mar Sarah Boone

6 Sep 1720 29 May 1742 7 Jun 1724
26 Feb 1798 1815

see page 6

Isaac Wilcoxson 1st Mar Martha Bave
1724 1747 1729

9 Sep 1757

2nd Mar Edith Phhilpott

23 Apr 1740

11 Sep 1765

Hannah Wilcoxson Mar Daniel Lewis
1731

Mary Wilcoxson
1735

George Wilcoxson Mar Elizabeth Hall
1730 1739
Sep 1785, Rowan County, NC 15 Dec 1782

Davis Wilcoxson
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4, Jonathan Boone Mar Mary Carter
6 Dec 1730 2nd Mar Elizabeth Dagley
1808

5. Elizabeth Boone Mar William Grant
5 Feb 1732 1750 1720
25 Feb 1818 22 Feb 1804

6. Daniel Boone Mar Rebecca Bryan
2 Nov 1734 14 Aug 1756 9 Jan 1738
26 Sep 1820 18 Mar 1813

7. Mary Boone Mar William Bryan
3 Nov 1736 1755
6 Jul 1819

8. George Boone Mar Nancy Ann Linville
2 Jan 1739 28 Nov 1764 ca 1742
11 Nov 1820 28 Mar 1814

9. Edward Boone Mar Martha Bryan
19 Nov 1740 1740
6 Oct 1780 1780

10. Squire Boone Mar Jan Van Cleve

16 Oct 1744 8 Aug 1765 16 Oct 1749

Aug 1815 10 Mar 1829

11. Hannah Boone Mar James John Stewart
22 Aug 1746 14 Feb 1765

9 Apr 1828 2nd Mar Richard Pennington
15 Mar 1777

ARTHUR WILCOCKSON

Arthur was born about 1640 and married Dorothy ------
CHILDREN OF ARTHUR AND DOROTHY WILCOCKSON

John Wilcockson Mar Dorothy Hall
1 Sep 1667 25 Apr 1686 25 Apr 1666

JOHN WILCOCKSON AND DOROTHY HALL

John was born in Manley, Cheshire, England, on 14 September
1667. He was the son of Arthur and Dorothy Wilcockson.
Dorothy was born in Staffordshire, England 25 April 1666. She
was the daughter of John Hall. They were married in Leek,
Staffordshire, on 25 Apr 1886,

CHILDREN OF JOHN AND DOROTHY WILCOCKSON

Ann Wilcockson (All born in Staffordshire)
28 Feb 1686
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14 Oct 1762 1708-1784

James Boone Mar Mary Foulke
18 Jul 1709 24 Nov 1714

1 Sep 1785 20 Feb 1756

2nd Mar Ann Griffith

Samuel Boone Mar Elizabeth Cassell
7 Jul 1711 29 Oct 1734
6 Aug 1745

SQUIRE AND SARAH (MORGAN) BOONE

Squire Boone was born on November 25, 1696, in Brandninch,
Devonshire, England. He was the son of George Boone III and
Mary Maugridge. The family sailed from Bristol, England, to
America in August 17, 1717. They were Quakers and settled in
Bucks County, Pennsylvania. Squire was a weaver like his
father. Later the family moved to Berks County, Pennsylvania.

On September 23, 1720, Squire married Sarah Morgan in North
Wales, Bucks County, Pennsylvania. Sarah was the daughter of
Edward and Margaret Morgan and born at Gwynedd, Berks
County, Pennsylvania. The Morgan family line goes back to King
Edward III of England. The family lived in North Wales for ten
years and then moved to Oley Township, Berks County, near
Reading.

Squire was removed from the Quaker Church 1748 because he
gave support to his son Israel to marry “out of unity”. This is
one of the reasons the family left Pennsylvania in May 1750
and moved to Holman'’s Ford on the Yadkin River, Rowan
County, North Carolina.

Squire was described as small in stature, ruddy complexion,
red hair (as did his G G grandson, Franklin Mylar) and gray
eyes. Sarah was a tall, robust, with black hair and dark eyes.

In North Carolina, Squire was able to get a number of land
grants. He was a man of property and was an influential person
in the community. He sat on the first panel of fourteen Justices
of Rowan County. Squire was appointed as one of the four
commissioners to lay out the 640 acres of Court House Town,
which became Salisbury. The family attend the Boone’s Baptist
Church near their home.

Squire died in January 2, 1765, in Rowan County, North
Carolina. Sarah died in 1777 in Rowan County, North Carolina.

CHILDREN OF SQUIRE AND SARAH BOONE

1. Sarah Cassandra Boone Mar John Wilcoxson
7 Jun 1724 29 May 1742 6 Sep 1720

1815 26 Feb 1798

See story on page 6

2. Israel Boone Mar -------

9 May 1726 13 Dec 1747

26 Jun 1756

3. Samuel Boone Mar Sarah Day
20 May 1728 6 Feb 1787
1808
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GEORGE III AND MARY (MAUGRIDGE) BOONE website!
Sign Up Now and post
George III was the son of George Boone II and Sarah Uppey. your own research.

He was born on March 19, 1666. George was a tanner and
byrabeel23  weaver by trade. He married Mary Maugridge in 1689. Mary
9n/2006:09:1638 was the daughter of John Maugridge born 1669 and Mary Milton

Members: 42882
Journals: 17190

22:54:03 -
Add rabee123 as born 1669 and she died 2 Feb 1739.
a friend
. George, Mary, and family left Bristol, England, on August 17,
rabeel23's.. 1717, and arrived in Philadelphia on October 10, 1717. All the
Profile children of George and Mary were born in Bradninch, _
Research Devonshire, England.
4 contact 6

The Boone family were Quakers and came to Pennsylvania

when William Penn urged Quakers to come to the New World. J

The family settled in Oley Township, Philadelphia County, that 7
is now Exeter Township in Berks County. George died on July ./) 7
27, 1744 in Exter, Berks Co. PA. \

Children of George and Mary Boone

George Boone IV Mar Deborah Howell
13 Jul 1690 27 Jul 1713 3 Nov 1691
20 Nov 1753 26 Jan 1759

Sarah Boone Mar Jacob Stover
29 Feb 1692 15 Mar 1715
20 Nov 1743

Squire Boone Mar Sarah Morgan
25 Nov 1696 23 Sep 1720 1700
2 Jan 1765 1777

Mary Boone Mar John Webb
23 Sep 1699 13 Jul 1720
16 Jan 1794 1774

John Boone never married

14 Jan 1702

10 Oct 1785

Joseph Boone Mar Catherine Brown
5 Apr 1704 1708

30Jan 1776 1778

Benjamin Boone Mar Ann Farmer
27 Jul 1706 2nd Mar Susannah Likens
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CHAPTER 6F
John Willcockson (Wilcockson, Wilcoxson - no consistent spelling)
Sarah Boone

NEW FOR 2002
e William Wilcoxson letter of
1861

e Old Wilcockson Cabin exists!
e More on Israel Wilcoxson

John Willcockson (Wilcoxson)
Born: 6 September 1720 at Chester County (later Berks County),
Pennsylvania.
Married: 29 May 1742/3/4 at Exeter, Berks County (old Lancaster
County), Pennsylvania
Died: 26 February 1798 in North Carolina. Also, he was rumored
to die 3 February
1782 at or near Bryan Station, Fayette County, Kentucky.
Other records
give evidence for a later date in North Carolina, such as 1798-
1805.
Parents: George Willcockson and Elizabeth Powell

Sarah Cassandra Boone

Born 7 June 1724 at Bucks County, Pennsylvania

Died 1815 Madison County, Kentucky

Parents: Squire Boone (1696 — 1765) and Sarah Morgan (1700 —
1777)

2" Edition, Morphew/Murphy Story — J.R. Murphy, 1 June
2002

MARRIAGE OF SARAH (BOONE) WILCOCKSON
MOVEMENT AWAY FROM PENNSYLVANIA

Sarah Boone was a Pennsylvania Quaker, and was condemned
when she married outside her church to John Willcockson. They
possibly migrated to North Carolina with the Squire Boone family
between 1750 and 1758. A question arises whether they stopped a year
or two in Western Virginia before moving on to North Carolina. Later
they moved to Kentucky and then returned to North Carolina.

JOHN WILCOXSON IN NORTH CAROLINA RECORDS

On 9 January 1765, Rowan County court books ordered the
appointment of overseers for a road, which included John Willcox to
cover the road from the South Yadkin to Israel Boon’s old place. Later
in 9 May 1765, John Willcockson witnessed a deed by David Jones to
Edmond Dedman in Rowan County.

6/24/2009
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1778: John Willcoxon 3.0.0 (valuation numbers in English money)
John Willcoxon Jr 1.0.6
George Willcoxin 2.7.6
Isaac Willcoxen 2.17.1
George Wilcoxen 4.4.8
1782: List of Rowan County men whose property faced confiscations:
George Wilcockson
John Wilcockson
David Willcockson
Isaac Wilcoxson
1787: Rowen County:
Samuel Wilcockson — 3 wm up to 21 and 50+, 1 wm 21-50, 3 wf
John Wilcockson - 3 wm up to 231 and 50+, 1 wm 21-50, 3 wf
William Wilcockson — 1 wm 21-50, 1 b. (In Davie County area)
1789: Rowen County — John Wilcockson 200 A. 1 wp (later became Davie County)
1790: U.S. Census Wilkes County, North Carolina
Wilcox, William, 3 males 16+, 4 males 16-, 3 females
Greer, Benjamin, 3 males <16, 6 males 16+, 1 female.
1790: U.S. Census Rowan County:
Wilcoxon, John, Sr: 1 male 16 up, 1 male <16, 1 female
Wilcoxon, John, Jr: 3 males 16 up, 2 males <16, 2 females
Wilcoxon, William, 1 male 16 up, 4 males <16, 6 females.
The above 3 are listed next to each other.
1793-1794: Rowan County Petition for a separate election: William Willcockson, John
Willcoxon
1795: Rowan County tax delinquents: John Wilcockson

EARLY TAX RECORDS IN KENTUCKY FOR THE WILCOCKSONS

Tax Records of Kentucky:
Fayette County — 7/24/1789: Aaron Wilcocks, David Willcocks, Daniel Wilcocks,
Ruth Wilcocks, John Willcocks

Madison County — 1795 (Isaac Wilcoxon)

http://www.planetmurphy.org/content/body/WilcoxJohn.htm
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Probable locations that William Bryant lived:

Fayette County, Kentucky, perhaps 1775 to before 1780
Madison County, Kentucky

Montgomery County, Kentucky

Estill County, Kentucky

Boone County, Kentucky?

Callaway County, Missouri?

Caldwell County, Missouri

Children of William Bryant and Rachel Wilcoxson:
(1) Hiram Bryant, ~1792, (2) Rachel Bryant, (3) Susan Bryant, ~1800, (4) George Bryant, (5) Jeremiah
Bryant, 20 August 1791 to 11 July 1834, (6) Thomas Bryant, 10 January 1795 to 5 September 1845, (7)
Benjamin Bryant, ~1797, (8) Henry Bryant, ~1802 to 1840, (9) William Bryant, 1822

OLD HISTORICAL WILCOXSON LETTER:

A. Letter by William Wilcoxson to Lyman Draper, postmarked December 25, (1863) Greenburg(?),
Kentucky, answering questions. From Draper Manuscript Collection, courtesty of Wisconsin
Hositorical Society, Series C, Volume 23, #57. Topic: Daniel Boone. The manuscripts give no
indication who his parents were.

December 23, 1863
Dear Sir:

I received your letter inquiries. I have heard my father say a great deal about Boone’s acts as a
soldier, as they were old hunters together, but the particulars now seem dim to me: One only seems
fresh in mind — that is, Boone’s daughter and two of Mr. Callaway’s at Boonesborough, took a canoe
across the river to hunt grapes. Five Indians captured them. The girls knowing their fathers would
follow them would gore(?) their high heel shoes in the ground and make all the sign they could. The
Indians would shake the tomahawk over their heads — the girls holding their heads to them and saying
“hit.” The Indians would laugh and say “good sojer.” They then put them on a horse, when they would
fall off, and pretend they couldn’t ride. The Indians would again shake the tomahawk’s over their
heads. The girls would hold their heads, and tell them “hit.” The Indians would laugh and say, “Good
Sojer.” Between sunset and dark, (after) they camped on a small creek, the fathers crawled up the creek
opposite to them. Three of the Indians were blowing up the fire and two getting wood, and the girls
sitting on the log. They fired on them, killed the three at the fire, and recaptured the girls, and got them
home safely. Yours,

Wm. Wilcoxson

ROWAN COUNTY TAX RECORDS FOR THE WILCOCKSONS

1759: John Wilcockson
1761: Isaac Wilcockson 1 wp.
John and “son Georgie.” (part of Rowan County that became Davie county)
1768: John Willcockson/David Wilcocks — 2
Isaac Wolcokson = 1 (future Davie County area)
1772: Isaac Wilcox/William Wilcox —2
George Wilcox — 1
Joshua Wilcockson — 1
Peter Wilcockson — 1

http://www.planetmurphy.org/content/body/WilcoxJohn.htm 7/15/2009
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Station, Fayette County, Kentucky at 26 years of age. See Indian story of Daniel Wilcoxon. “Israel
Wilcockson” is listed as a Virginia solder in the Revolution — probably Kentucky County, Virginia
(Revolutionary Soldiers of Virginia,” by Eckenrode, 1911).

Possible land worked by Israel Wilcoxson

10 December 1780: Levi Todd Assee of Israel Wilcox this day claimed a preemption to a tract
of land of 400 Acres at the State price in the District of Kentucky lying between the lower Blue Licks
to Limestone run and Lawrence Creek about 10 Miles from the Licks and two Miles from Wm.
McConels, including a spring and improvement by the said Wilcox making an Actual settlement in
April 1779, satisfactory proof being made to the Court, they are of Opinion that the said Todd has a
right to a preempt’n of 400 Acres of land to include the above Location and that a Certificate issue
accordingly (From Certificate Book of the Virginia Land Commission 1779-1780,” by the Kentucky
Historical Society, 1981). This land is about 10 miles northeast of Blue Licks Battlefield State Park
and closer to the Ohio River.

10. Samuel Wilcoxson was born in Rowan County, North Carolina on 24 February 1755 and died 16
September (or November) 1825 at Stanton, Powell County, Kentucky. Samuel married Anna Jordon at
Rowan County, North Carolina. See next generation.

11. William (Red) Wilcoxson was born before 1758 in Rowan County, North Carolina and died
October 1830 in Barren County, Kentucky. William is the youngest son and married Nancy Sparks,
about 1775. Red had his will probated March 18, 1829 at Barren County, Kentucky. He is on the 1800
Wilkes County, North Carolina tax list and later, the Barren County tax list for 1830:

Children: (1) George Wilcoxson, 1783, (2) Issac Wilcoxson, 1784, (3) Thomas Wilcoxson, (4) William
“Redhead” Wilcoxson, 1794, (5) Martha (Patsy) Wilcoxson, (6) Racheal Wilcoxson, 1800, (7) Nancy
Wilcoxson, 4 April 1808, (8) Sarah (Sally) Wilcoxson, (9) Mary (Polly) Wilcoxson, 1782, (10) Daniel
Wilcoxson, 1775-1850.

12. Mary Wilcoxson was born about 1760 and died 1820 at Feme Osage, Boone County, Missouri, or
Calloway County, Missouri. Mary married Renaldo Walker on 27 November 1778 at Wilkes County,
N.C. - county record.

Children: (1) Nathaniel Walker, 1779, (2) John Walker, 1779, (3) Mary Walker, 1780, (4) Samuel
Wilcoxson Walker, 1782, (5) Jesse P. Walker, 1783 to 1871, (6) Diana Walker, 1787/8, (7) Joel Hayden
Walker, 1789, (8) Jane D. Walker, ~1791, (9) Rachel Walker, ~1791, (10) Elias Walker, ~1793, (11)
Pleasant Walker, ~1796, (12) Sarah Walker, ~ 1798.

13. Rachel Wilcoxson was born in Rowan County, North Carolina about 1765, and died about 1821 in
Callaway County, Missouri. She married about 1790 in Rowan County, North Carolina to William
Bryant (1748-1833). William Bryant was noted at Fort Boonesborough in 1775 and later an early settler
of Bryan’s Station and hielped to build a blockhouse there. He returned to North Carolina and enlisted
three times in the American Revolution in 1780 and 1781, and was at the Battle of Guilford Courthouse
and Siege of Yorktown. William and his wife are alone in their household in 1810 Estill County,
Kentucky. William was part of an interesting lawsuit in 1815, which involved his son, Hiram Bryant,
and Squire and Elijah Wilcoxson (see details in Samuel Wilcoxson Chapter under Squire Wilcoxson).
Later William and Rachel Bryant moved on to Missouri. He applied for a pension at Boone County,

Missouri on June 25%, 1833.
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1787 Wilkes County, North Carolina
1790 Fort Boonesborough, Kentucky
1796, 1798 Carter County, Tennessee tax record: Benjamin Cutberth, Sr.

Children: (1) Daniel Boone Cutbirth, 1760/62, (2) Benjamin Cutbirth Jr., ~1764, (3) Mary
Cutbirth, ~1770, (4) Sarah Cutbirth, ~1772.

8. Lt. Daniel Wilcoxson was born 13 March 1755 at Rowan County, North Carolina or Berks County,
Pennsylvania and died 16 June 1837 in Shelby County, Kentucky. He married Sarah Faulkner or
Faulconer at Bryans Station October 1780. Daniel is buried at R. Brewers Farm Cemetery, east from
Bagdad, Shelby County, Kentucky.

In a reminiscence written in 1898 about Daniel, a son related what a grandmother had told him
regarding an Indian attack near Bryant Station. ...”When plowing time came Daniel Wilcoxson and his
brother were in the fields, Daniel was plowing and his brother sitting on a log picking the flint of his gun
(one would plow and the other watch for Indians) when an Indian slipped up and tomahawked one on
the log. Daniel ran, the Indian after him. The Indian was so near that when Daniel was on top of the
fence, the Indian was at the bottom. ...Daniel barely escaped with his life.” From Filson Club History
as related by Hazel A. Spraker in “The Boone Family”.

Early Kentucky Land of Daniel Wilcoxson

10 January 1780: “Daniel Wilcoxson this day claimed a settlement and preemption to a tract
of land in the district of Kentucky lying about 8 or 9 Miles from Bryants Station on the dividing ridge
between the big fork of Elkhorn and Coopers run, a branch of Licking Creek, Including a sinking
Spring by settling in the Country in the year 1777 and residing ever since; satisfactory proof being
made to the court, they are of Opinion that the said Wilcoxson has a right to a settlement of 400 Acres
of land in include the above location and the preemption of 1000 Acres adjoining and that a Certificate
issue accordingly” (From Certificate Book of the Virginia Land Commission, 1779-1780,” by
Kentucky Historical Society, 1981, page 124). Coopers Run is about 4 miles northwest of Paris,
Bourbon County, Kentucky.

9 September 1791, Daniel Wilcoxson had a land grant of 200 acres surveyed in Woodford
County on the North Fork of Greers Creek.

10 June 1779, Daniel Wilcoxon is listed as a pioneer soldier with Captain John Holder’s
Company in present-day Madison County, at and near Boonesborough.

In 1795, he is on the Woodford tax lists as Daniel Wilcoxson. In the 1810 U.S. Census of
Woodford County, Kentucky, Daniel Wilcoxson was noted as head of a family of eight.

In 1835, Daniel Wilcoxen, Lieutenant, was listed on a 1835 Revolutionary War pension list
(North Carolina line) in Shelby County, Kentucky, beginning 2 March 1833 with $120 annual
allowance. No age was given.

Children: (1) William “Black-Head” Wilcoxson, (2) Patsy “Martha™ Wilcoxson, (3) Polly “Mary”
Wilcoxson, (4) Isaac Wilcoxson, (5) Frankie Wilcoxson, (6) Annie Wilcoxson, (7) Louis Wilcoxson, (8)
Sallie Wilcoxson, (9) Josephine Wilcoxson, (10) Daniel Wilcoxson Jr.

9. Israel Wilcoxson was born in Rowan County, North Carolina before 1755 and died 1781 near Bryan

http://www.planetmurphy.org/content/body/WilcoxJohn.htm 7/15/2009




image26.jpeg
John Willcockson (Wilcoxson) Page 6 of 10

Known locations or land owned were:

a. 1778 Rowan County, North Carolina Buffalo Creek in the Forks of the Yadkin.

b. Fayette County, Kentucky from 1787 to 1792 on or near 4 Mile Creek. Some of this land was
turned over their son, David Hagans in 1800.

c. Clark County, Kentucky (established 1792), from 1793-1795, 1797-1799

d. Madison County, Kentucky tax records of 1800 and 1801.

Known children were: (1) David Hagans, Sr. (~1772 to 1 August 1854 Clark Co, Ky.), (2) Sarah
Hagans (>1775->1840), (3) Rachel Hagans (? to 6 May 1832 Estill County, Kentucky), probably
married Thomas Brinegar. (From Pat Frunzi e-mail 2 January 2002)

5. George Wilcoxson was born in Lancaster County, Pennsylvania before 1751 and died after March
16, 1799 in Sevier County, Tennessee, at approximately 48 years of age. There is a 1799 will filed by
George Willcockson in nearby Jefferson County, Tennessee, (will book 1, page 82) which has not been
seen and possibly is his. He married 1% to Elizabeth Beam on October 20, 1767 in Rowan County,
North Carolina (county record). George married 2" o Elizabeth Pinchback on 23 February 1789 at
Rowan County, N.C. The following Tennessee land grants may belong to our subject, George
Wilcockson:

(A) George Willcockson: Green County on north side of French Broad River: (1) undated, 150 acres,
and listed Sevier-Green Counties, (2) entered 29 October 1783 and granted 1 November 1786, 150
acres, (3) entered 10 November 1788 and granted 18 August 1795, 400 acres.

(B) George Willcockson: Green County on Dumplin Creek: (1) entered 14 April 1780, granted 12 July
1794, 150 acres, (2) entered 21 April 1784 and granted 1 November 1786 on the waters.

6. Isaac Wilcoxson was born in Bucks County or Lancaster County, Pennsylvania before 1751 and died
before October 10, 1783, at approximately 32 years of age. He married Ruth Johnston on 17 October
1775.

7. Elizabeth Wilcoxson was born in Lancaster County, Pennsylvania 17 March 1743 and died 1815 in
MY Pleasant, Maury County, Tennessee. She married Benjamin Cutbirth, Sr. about 1769 in Rowan
County, North Carolina. B e

T. S. Calloway reported Benjamin Cutbirth, Sr. on hunting and trading trips to the Mississippi
River and New Orleans between 1765-1770. In176Z, the author, John Bakeless, recorded him hunting
with Daniel Boone and that Cutbirth’s explorations helped Boone to become interested in Kentucky. In
1783, Elizabeth (Wilcoxson) Cutbeard was noted 85T meriber of Eaton's Church i Rowan Cotiity,
North Carolina and apparently married Benjamin about 1773.

“I am unable to tell you where Grandfather Benj. Cutbirth, Sr., went to from this country (North
Carolina). His son Benjamin settled in what is now Johnson County in Tennessee. ...Uncle Benjamin
finally moved to the State of lowa and was living there in 1842, but I have not heard of him since.”
(From T. S. Callaway, Ashe County, North Carolina, as written to Lyman Draper on 25 December 1883;
Draper Manuscript Collection/Wisconsin Historical Society, Series C, Volume 9, #133)

Some locations for Benjamin Cutbirth, Sr. (Cutbeard, Cutberth, etc)

1783 Rowan County, North Carolina

http://www.planetmurphy.org/content/body/WilcoxJohn.htm 7/15/2009
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CHILDREN OF JOHN AND SARAH WILCOCKSON

Children — the list varies in numbers and names and suggests more research is needed. No will
or probate has been found for John or Sarah Willcockson. As to their children, even Hazel A. Spraker
wrote that there wasn’t a complete list of names. Jermaiah F. Willcoxen, in an 1861 letter to Lyman
Draper, named six sons and four daughters of Samuel Wilcockson (From Draper Manuscript Collection,
courtesy of Wisconsin Historical Society, Series C. Volume 24). Missing on his list is David
Wilcoxson and George Wilcoxson. Also notice the similar 1755 birth year for Daniel Wilcockson, Jr.,
and Samuel Wilcockson.

1. David Wilcoxson was born in Lancaster County (now Berks County), Pennsylvania, on 22 October
1742, and died 25 February 1832, probably Giles County, Tennessee, at 89 years of age. He married
Kezia , date unknown. David Sr. is listed on the 1811 Giles County tax list and on a 1830 Giles
County, Tennessee census, adjacent to his sons, David Wilcoxson Jr., Jesse Wilcoxson, and Isaac
Wilcoxson.

Children: (1) Aaron Wilcoxson 1 April 1789 — 4 January 1824, (2) Isaac 1798-1843, (3) David
Wilcoxen, Jr. 9 March 1796 — 4 February 1883 and married Sabrina Cutbirth, (4) Jesse Wilcoxson, 16
September 1798 — 27 January 1843, (5) Hannah Wilcoxson, about 1798, (6) John Wilcoxson, (7) Isaac
Wilcoxson

2. John Wilcoxson, Jr. was born in Lancaster County, Pennsylvania about 1743 and died after 1830 in
Howard County, Missouri. He married 1780 to Sarah Notson in Fayette County, Kentucky.

Some locations for John Wilcoxson, Jr.

1795 Clark County, Kentucky: John Wilcox
1810 Clark County, Kentucky, near children, John Wilcockson and Daniel Wilcockson.
1820 Clark County, Kentucky, near children, Israel and Isaac Wilcoxson

Children: (1) William Wilcoxson, 1780 to 1864, (2) Martha Wilcoxson, 1785, who never married,
(3) David Wilcoxson, 1794, (4) Daniel Wilcoxson, (5) Mary M. Wilcoxson, (6) John Wilcoxson, (7)
Isreal Wilcoxson, who married Polly Fleming and moved to Boone County, Missouri, (8) Amos
Wilcoxson, (9) Isaac Wilcoxson

3. Nancy Wilcoxson was born 17 May 1743 to 1745 at Lancaster County, Pennsylvania and died 30
October 1790 at Wilkes County, North Carolina. Nancy married Benjamin Greer and her household of
9 males and 1 female was noted on the 1790 Wilkes County census.

“My Grandfa Greer, Sr.), was seven months ounger t than Daniel Boone 1o the day
and daté . -removed to Kentucky about the year 1800 ‘and settled there in Green County on Green
River ...and died there.” (condensed from four letters dated 1884 and 1885 by Jesse Greer, Ir., at age

78, Jefferson, Ashe County, North Carolina — Draper Manuscript Collection/Wisconsin Historical
Society, Series C, Volume 9, #23, 24, 25, 27, 29)

Children: (1) Rachel Greer, 31 March 1768, (2) Jesse Greer, Sr., 14 November 1778, (3) David
Greer, 2 February 1781, (4) William Greer

4. Sarah Wilcoxson was born before 1755 and died after 1800. She married, date unknown, to Thomas
Hagans (born <1752 to >1801).
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Daniel Boone.
WILCOCKSONS MOVE BACK IN NORTH CAROLINA 1783

John is said to return to North Carolina by 1783, and lived in North Carolina until 1798 or
beyond. “John Wilcoxon, Sr.” is recorded on the U.S. Census of 1790 Rowan County, North Carolina,
with his wife and one male under age sixteen. In 1798, the last of his lands in Rowan County were
sold to his son, William (witnessed by son, Samuel, and grandson, Squire Willcockson). He probably
died shortly after this.

LAST DEEDS OF JOHN WILLCOCKSON

26 February 1798. John Willcockson, of Rowan County, North Carolina, deeded to William
Willcockson of Rowan County, for 525 pounds a parcel of land containing 165 acres on both sides of
Bear Creek...part of tract of 640 acres granted unto Jacob Koller, conveyed by J. Koller to John
Willockson and now by John Willcockson to William Willcockson. Witnesses were Samuel
Wilcockson and Squire Willcockson. Signed: John (x) Willcockson. (Rowan County Deed Book 19,
page 254)

26 February 1798. John Willcockson of Rowan County, North Carolina deeded to William
Willcockson for 250 pounds, estimation of 160 acres on Bear Creek including John Rowland’s line,
now Edward Parkers to Jacob Keller corner. Witnesses were Samuel Willockson and Squire
Willcockson. Signed John (x) Willcockson. (19:256)

“Sarah Boone Wilcoxson died at the home of her daughter, Elizabeth Cutbirth in 1815 jn
Madison County, KentucKy. ...No will of either Sarah (Boone) Wilcoxson or her husband John have

fgen Tound, and no complete llsh' this children” (From “The Boone Family — A"genealogical History
of Descendants of George and Mary Boone,” by Hazel A. Spraker, 1923). This is disputed, as the
Cutbirth family was thought to be living in Tennessee at this time.

John Willcoxen “died in Rowan County, North Carolina, after which she removed to Kentucky
with her Grandson, Jesse Boon Willcoxen, with whom she lived until her death which took place in the
year 1814, at the age of about 97 years.” (From a 1861 letter by Jeremiah F. Willcoxen to Lyman
Draper in Draper Manuscript Collection, courtesy of the Wisconsin Historical Society, Series C, Volume
24.). Another source stated that Sarah was probably buried in or near Jesse B. Wilcoxson’s farm in
southern Clark County, Kentucky, not far from Boonesboro. Jesse (~1780) is believed to be the son of
Samuel Wilcoxson (1755).

JOHN AND SARAH WILCOCKSON -
OLDEST ORIGINAL LOG HOUSE IN DAVIE COUNTY, N.C.

Apparently, the original log cabin of John and Sarah Wilcockson, thought built between 1752
and 175 Creek, has-survived in Davie County, and over the years has béen

incorporated into newer sections.of a larger private home. The original part of the house was a 17 x 33
foot room with floor planks three inches thick and over 1 foot wide, with a narrow staircase to the attic.
The location of the house was not given, and is not open to the public. (From “Salisbury Sunday Post,
1B, 3 August 1975, article by Gordon Tomlinson, courtesy of Pat Frunzi)
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Married John Wilcoxson. Patriotic service, Virginia.

There is a large monument at Fort Boonesborough, with the names of the settlers on it. Both
John Wilcoxson and his wife, Sarah, are engraved on this monument, which is most impressive.

The children of John Wilcoxson, Sr. also came to early Kentucky, with Samuel Wilcoxson in
1775 and 1785, Rachel (Wilcoxson) Bryant in 1775, Daniel Wilcoxson by 1777, Israel Wilcoxson by
1779, John Wilcoxson, Jr., by 1780, Elizabeth (Wilcoxson) Cutbirth by 1790. A few stayed in
Kentucky, such as Daniel Wilcoxson and Israel Wilcoxson, and others such as Samuel Wilcoxson
returned to North Carolina. This is an impressive list for such an early date in Kentucky (statehood in
1792)! e

In September 1778 at Fort Boonesborough, 440 Indians and 12 French-Canadians surrounded the
fort and demanded surrender while displaying British and French flags. The Indians were lead by the
Shawnee Chief Blackfish; Lieutenant-Governor Hamilton who sent them out to demand surrender of the
Kentuckians and bring them back to Detroit as subjects of the King. The fort only had about 60 men and
boys to defend it, and yet the settlers voted to fight, instead of surrender. For two days, Daniel Boone
pretended to negotiate a treaty while the settlers slipped in food, cattle, hogs, horses and supplies into the
fort. Finally, after the Indians attempted to grab the Kentuckians at the negotiations, the battle for Fort
Boonesborough began. They attempted to torch the fort, pretended they had left the area, and began
several tunnels from the riverbank into the fort. So desperate were the settlers that Daniel fashioned two
wooden canons out of logs. One cannon managed to get off one shot before it burst. Little food was left
after a week of fighting. Then a heavy rain developed one night, and when it ceased, the sound of
digging in the tunnel could no longer be heard. The heavy rain caved-in the tunnels and caused the
Shawnee Indians to quit the 9 to 11 day siege. The following morning, the people from Fort
Boonesborough came out and searched the woods for Indians, but they had gone.

John Wilcockson was probably at Fort Boonesborough after this battle, between the years 1778
to 1783. Wilcockson setilers at Fort Boonesborough were:

William “Billy” Wilcox (son of George Wilcockson, born ~1725).
Daniel Wilcoxon, Sr.
Elizabeth Wilcockson, who married Benjamin Cutbirth.
John and Sarah “Sally” (Boone) Wilcoxon, Sr.
Rachel Wilcoxon, who married William Bryant.
(From “Early Settlers of Fort Boonesborough,” by H. Thomas Tudor, 1995)

Bryan Station is another settlement that some Wilcoxsons — Daniel Wilcoxson, Sr. and Israel
Wilcoxson lived at or nearby. The station was about 5 miles northeast of present-day Lexington,
Kentucky, on the southern bank of the North Fork of Elkhorn. The Bryans settled at the Station in 1779,
but a cabin had been built by Joseph Bryan, a son-in-law of Col. Daniel Boone, in 1776. The history of
Bryan Station included a number of Indian attacks. In one of the worst attacks in 1782, the women of
the Station prevented its fiery destruction by carrying badly needed buckets of water from the spring to
the station while surrounded by Indians. A memorial exists for their efforts. Men at the Station included
Daniel Wilcoxen, son of John Sr. Daniel Wilcoxen was in Captain in Holder’s Company on 10 June
1779.

There is confusion on the name of Bryan’s Station. In 1779 and 1780, eight Bryans made 13,000
acres of land entries near the Station. Joseph, William, John, and James Bryant entered an additional
6,000 acres. The names Bryan, Bryan’s, Bryants, and Bryant Station, were used at different times by

http://www.planetmurphy.org/content/body/WilcoxJohn.htm 7/15/2009




image30.jpeg
John Wilicockson (Wilcoxson) Page 2 of 10

DEEDS OF JOHN WILCOCKSON

9 October 1779. #2328. John Wilcockson has a land entry request for 640 acres on Bear Creek,
including his improvement and the old survey run by James Cailer (Koller?). This is probably State
of North Carolina land grant #342, granted 10 October 1788.

9 Jan 1780, Warrant. Entry #2295. John Wilcockson is granted 640 acres on both sides of
Bear (IreeE, in Rowan County, adjacent Benley’s corner and Thomas Mansfield’s corner. North

Carolina Grant #959, surveyed 22 February 1783, and signed John “J” Wilcockson.

10 October 1783, the State of North Carolina Grant #861 titled 640 acres to John Wilcockson on
both sides of Bear Creek, adjacent Bentley and Thomas Maxfield.

DEEDS MENTIONING JOHN WILCOCKSON

21 March 1780, Daniel Lewis was granted 100 acres on Bear Creek adjacent to Benjamin Bartley,
Abraham Wiltey, John Wilcockson, and John McElhaney.

1 August 1783, #2602. Thomas Maxwell was deeded 150 acres on Bear Creek adjacent to John
Wilcockson, Senior.

1 September 1783, Thomas Maxwell was also granted by the State #645, 327 acres on the west
side of Bear Creek adjacent John Wilcockson and his former survey.

Bear Creek is northwest of Salisbury, Rowan County, North Carolina, by about 20 miles in
Davie County.  An explanation is needed for these deeds. John Granville, who never saw his vast North
Carolina lands, died in 1763, forcing his land offices to close. Consequently, it was not possible for a
settler to obtain a land title between 1763 and 1778 within the Granville area. In 1778, this changed and
a claim for land could be entered in county records, because British land rights ceased during the
American Revolution.

Our first clue when John Wilcockson left Rowan County comes in August 8, 1778, when “John
Willcoxon, Sr.” and son “Samuel Willcoxson” are named nonjurors (no-shows) in Captain Lyons
District.

WILCOCKSONS IN EARLY KENTUCKY

John Wilcoxson maved ta Kentucky, possibly between 1778 and 1782 and was-noted-at Fort
Boonesborough, or living nearby. Future research may better define the dates. An entry (below) by the
Daughters of the American Revolution states John Wilcoxson was a soldier of Virginia, which must
mean Kentucky County, Virginia. What do they mean 6y Soldier?” Do they Know something we have
not found yet?

From Daughter of the American Revolution in their Centennial Edition, Part III

John Wilcoxson, Senior: born about 1720 in Pennsylvania and died 26 February 1798 in North
arolina. Married Sarah Boone. Soldier Virginia.

Sarah (Boone) Wilcoxson: Born 7 June1724 in Pennsylvania and died 1815 Kentucky.
http://www.planetmurphy.org/content/body/WilcoxJohn.htm 7/15/2009
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CHAPTER 6F
John Willcockson (Wilcockson, Wilcoxson - no consistent spelling)
Sarah Boone
NEW FOR 2002
e William Wilcoxson letter of 1861
e Old Wilcockson Cabin exists!
e  More on Israel Wilcoxson

John Willcockson (Wilcoxson)
Born: 6 September 1720 at Chester County (later Berks County), Pennsylvania.
Married: 29 May 1742/3/4 at Exeter, Berks County (old Lancaster County), Pennsylvania
Died: 26 February 1798 in North Carolina. Also, he was rumored to die 3 February
1782 at or near Bryan Station, Fayette County, Kentucky. Other records
give evidence for a later date in North Carolina, such as 1798-1805.
Parents: George Willcockson and Elizabeth Powell

Sarah Cassandra Boone
Born 7 June 1724 at Bucks County, Pennsylvania
Died 1815 Madison County, Kentucky
Parents: Squire Boone (1696 — 1765) and Sarah Morgan (1700 — 1777)

24 Edition, Morphew/Murphy Story — J.R. Murphy, 1 June 2002

MARRIAGE OF SARAH (BOONE) WILCOCKSON
MOVEMENT AWAY FROM PENNSYLVANIA

Sarah Boone was a Pennsylvania Quaker, and was condemned when she married outside her
church to John Willcockson. They possibly migrated to North Carolina with the Squire Boone family
between 1750 and 1758. A question arises whether they stopped a year or two in Western Virginia
before moving on to North Carolina. Later they moved to Kentucky and then returned to North
Carolina.

JOHN WILCOXSON IN NORTH CAROLINA RECORDS

On 9 January 1765, Rowan County court books ordered the appointment of overseers for a road,
which included John Willcox to cover the road from the South Yadkin to Israel Boon’s old place. Later
in 9 May 1765, John Willcockson witnessed a deed by David Jones to Edmond Dedman in Rowan
County.

The March 1772 Rowan Count ordered John Luckey, Robert Johnson, Samuel Luckey, William
and James and Morgan Bryan, JOHN WILCOCKS, James Brown, Theops Morgan, Thomas and Will
Willson and Luke Lee to lay off a road from the road leading from Salisbury to the shoals of the Yadkin
River. Then they were to do the same between Second and Third Creek with this road running towards
Renshaw’s Ford on the South River, then along the dividing ridge between Rocky and Hunting Creek,
until it intersected Hunting Creek, and from the head of the creek to the next ford above Widow Backis
on the main Yadkin River, known as Samuel Bryant’s Bottom.

| |
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Search billions of records on Ancestry.com

First Name Last Name 39@13*21

Husband: Rowland POWELL

Born: ABT 1670 at: Wales

Married: 19 MAR 1695 at: Haverford, Cheste r Co, PA
Died: 1695 at: Pennsylvania

Father:

Mother:

Other Spouses:

Wife: Maud RICHARD:

o s A7
Born: ABT 1670 at: Llanllwch, St. Pe ters, Wales
Died: 2 APR 1708 at:

Father:

Mother:

Other Spouses:

CHILDREN
Name: Elizabeth POWELL / ‘/,/.,,!

Born: 10 MAR 1696 at: Radnor Mm, Cheste r, PA

Married: 15 APR 1719 at: Radnor Mm, Cheste r, PA
Died: at:

Spouses: George WILLCOCKSON
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Search billions of records on Ancestry.com
First Name Last Name i

George WILLCOCKSON 2

i .

Born: ABT 1692 at:
Married: 15 APR 1719 at: Radnor Mm, Cheste r, PA
Died: at:
Father:
Mother:
Other Spouses:
Wife: Elizabeth POWELL //«' el ,;/

Born: 10 MAR 1696 at: Radnor Mm, Cheste r, PA
Died: at:
Father:Rowland POWELL 5 5
Mother: Maud RICHARDS o1V
Other Spouses: &=
CHILDREN
P e
Name: John WILCOXSON £ (o4
Born: 6 SEP 1720 Exeter, Berks Co, PA 1
Married: 25 MAY 1742 Berks Co, PA 1
Died: 3 FEB 1782 at: Kentucky
Spouses: Sarah Cassandra BOONE

SOURCES
1) Membership Roster and Soldiers The Tennessee Society of the
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Daniel WILCOXSON

13 MAR 1755 Rowan Co, NC 1

1790 Bryant's Station, KY 1
18 JUN 1937 Shelby Co, KY 1
Sarah FAULKNER

Mary WILCOCKSON

at:
27 NOV 1778 at: Wilkes Co, NC
at:

Renelder WALKER

Name: Samuel WILCOCKSON

Born: 1755 at: Rowan Co, NC
Married: at:
Died: NOV 1825 at: Estill Co, KY

Spouses: Anna JORDAN

Name: Sarah WILCOXSON

Born: at:
Married: at:

Died: at:
Spouses:

Name: Rachel Ann WILCOXSON

Born: 1770 at: NC
Married: at:
Died: 1820 at: Calloway Co, MO

Spouses: William BRYANT

Name: William WILCOXSON
Born: at:

Married: at:
Died: at:

Spouses:

SOURCES

1) Membership Roster and Soldiers The Tennessee Society of the
2) The Heritage of Watauga County North Carolin a
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Search billions of records on Ancestry.com
First Name iLast Name
Nae
U — w.ﬂ.m,,,_..‘.,,.m.._n......w..m..,.,.,.-./»....,m. .
Husband: John WILCOXSON
[T e s —————————————
Born: 6 SEP 1720 at: Exeter, Berks Co, PA 1
Married: 25 MAY 1742 at: Berks Co, PA 1
Died: 3 FEB 1782 at: Kentucky —|—
Father:George WILLCOCKSON 7 bAoA
Mother:Elizabeth POWELL - . 4
Other Spouses: / &6 W

Wife: Sarah Cassandra BOONE Pl

RSN o

Born: 7 APR 1724 at: Exeter, Berks Co, PA
Died: 1815 at: Estill Co, KY
Father:Squire BOONE, Sr. 7 B
Mother: Sarah MORGAN o p
Other Spouses: G- W)

CHILDREN

Name Da [ LCOXSON

Born: 22 OCT 1742 at: Exeter, Berks Co, PA
Married: at:

Died: 25 FEB 1834 at: Giles Co, TN

Spouses: Keziah (WILCOXSON)

Name: Elizabeth WILCOXSON

Born: ABT 1743 at:
Married: at:

Died: 1818 at: Maury Co, TN
Spouses:

Name: Nancy WILCOXSEN &5 (31t /4

Born: 17 MAY 1743/45 at: Berks Co, PA
Married: 1767 at: NC 2

Died: 31 OCT 1790 at: Wilkes Co, NC 2
Spouses: Benjamin GREER S G6F

Name: John WILCOXSON, Jr.

Born: 1744 at: Pennsylvania
Married: at:

Died: 1830 at: Missouri
Spouses:

Name: George WILCOXSON

Born: 1746 at: Berks Co, PA
Married: 20 OCT 1767 at: Rowan Co, NC

Died: ABT JAN 1801 at: Sevier Co, TN
Spouses: Elizabeth BEAM

Name: Isaac WILCOXSON

Born: at:
Married: at

Died: at:
Spouses:

Name: Israel WILCOXSON

Born: at:
Married: at:

Died: at:
Spouses
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and dispersing others. So the young Witherspoons fulfilled their promise of returning speedily to the
Tory camp, bringing the O'Neal mare with them; but under somewhat different circumstances from
what the unsophisticated Tories expected.

The three prisoners taken were Captain Riddle, and two of his noted associates, named Reeves
and Goss. On therr arrival at Wilkesboro, a court martial condemned them to be hung; but as if'to
curry favor with the soldiers, or get them ina condition so he might escape, Riddle treated them
freely to whisky. Learning which, Colonel Cleveland frankly informed him, that it would be useless
to waste his whisky i such efforts--that he would be hung directly after breakfast. The three
notorious freebooters were accordingly executed, on the hill adjoming the village, on-a-stately oak,
which is yet standing, and pointed out 1o strangers-at Wilkesboro-Mrs. Riddle, who seems to have
accompanied her husband on his wild and reckless marauds, was present, and witnessed his
execution.

Next

Home * Index * Surnames * Contact
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the Platte River west to Fort Laramie, Wyoming. They traveled
near the Green River and on to Soda Springs, Idaho. The trail
divided at Soda Springs, to the northwest was Oregon and the
southwest was California. The Mylar families continued on to
California and crossed over the Kit Carson Pass in California.
Enoch and Lydia arrived at Volcano, Amador County, on the
16th day of November 1854.

One day, soon, after passing Fort Laramie, as the wagon train
was moving west, Lydia’s son William Henry Sale, age four,
turned up missing and was lost along the trail. The wagon train
stopped and had to lay over. Some of the men saddled their
horses and went back up the trail searching for Henry untii he
was found. Henry was still playing near the river where the
wagon train had spent the night. The next day the wagon train
continued on it's way with the family keeping a close eye on
Henry to make sure he was not left again.

William Henry Sale married Lottie Dixon in Sacramento on
October 25, 1874, and they had a family of thirteen children.
Lottie died in 1899, and is buried at Granite Spring, Mariposa
County, with four of her children Charles, Roy, Edith, and Ethel.
William Henry died in Winters, Yolo County, on July 10, 1921.

These members of the MYLAR family who left Gentry County,
Missouri, in the spring of 1852 and joined the wagon train
going to California were the following: (age)

Franklin (40) & Tymandra Mylar (37): child Nancy (15).

Israel (36) & Mary Mylar (36): children Enoch (11) & Isaac (4).
Thomas Mylar (20).

Those who waited until the string of 1854:

James L. (28) & Mary Mylar (25): children James (3), Twins
Julia & John (1).

William Neal (28): James’ brother in law.

Isaac (27) & Talitha Mylar (20): child Thomas (1).

John (36) & Julia Mylar Hunt (30): Children Levi (12), Rachel
(11), Elizabeth (9),

Charles (7), Sarah (5).

Enoch (45) & Lydia Mylar (24): children Henrietta (10), James
(7),

& Henry Sale (4).

Upon arriving in California in October of 1852, Franklin,
Thomas, and Israel worked their way south to Shaws Flat in
Tuolumne County, The 1852 Census listed Thomas Mylar as a
miner in Calaveras County in November. Franklin's daughter
Nancy married William Stingley in Shaws Flat in December
1853. In 1854 Isaac and James L. came to California and
settled at Shaw Flat. Enoch had stopped at Volcano, Amador
County. Isaac and Thomas combined their successful claims
into one. After a short time James L. moved near Coulterville in
Mariposa County. The rest of the brothers tried mining gold
with some success. By 1856, Israel and Isaac had moved to
San Juan Township, Monterey County. (near the present day
San Juan Bautista) Israel bought one hundred and sixty acres
and buildings with the gold he had panned. Isaac, also, had
gold to buy land and get a good start. They both were farmers
and raised stock in this fertile valley. In 1867, James joined
them in Monterey County; and lived in the San Juan Canyon.

James Mylar, son of Enoch, moved to Mariposa County and
lived near Coulterville in 1867. He went to Monterey County in

Page 20 of 26
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Whig--to be used, when in a tight place, to help them out of difficulty, by assuming that they were
patriots of the truest type, Cleveland's commendation passing unquestioned along the borders of
Virginia and the Carolinas. But "Old Round About" had a strong

____________ f:

(&) GreeLr; wgs ogne of Cleveland's heroes. One of his fellow soldiers stole his tobacco from him,
when he threatened he would whip him for it as soon as he should put his eyes on him. Cleveland
expostulated with Greer, telling him his men ought to fight the enemy, and not each other. "T'll give
him a hint of i, any way," said Greer, and when he met the tobacco pilferer, he knocked him down.
Greer's hint was long a by-word m all that region.--Col. W. W. Lenorr.

[Page 443]

suspicion that their urgency for these passports betokened that the moment they were completed,
his days would be numbered; and thus naturally but a poor penman, he purposely retarded his task
as much as possible, hoping to gain time for the expected relief, apologizing for his blunders, and
renewing his unwilling efforts. Several of the Tory party were now gathering up their horses for an
early start, and Cleveland was receiving severe threatenings if he did not hurry up his last passport.

Just at this moment, while Captain Riddle and Zachariah Wells were especially guarding Cleveland
and Captain Ross--the former with Cleveland's pistol presented at his breast, and the latter with his
gun aimed for nstantaneous use, if need be--the relief party were silently creeping up; and the next
moment several guns were fired, and the Whigs rushed up, uttering their loudest yells. Colonel
Cleveland, comprehending the situation, tumbled off the prostrate tree, on the side opposite to his
friends, lest their balls might accidently hit him, and exclaiming, in his joy, at the top of his thundering
voice, "Huzza for brother Bob!--that's right, give 'em h--11" Wells alone was shot, as he was
scampering away, by William Callaway in hot pursut, and supposed to be mortally wounded, he
was left to his fate; the rest fled with the aid of their fresh horses, or such as they could secure at the
moment--Riddle and his wife among the number. Cleveland's servant, a pack-horse for Tory
plunder, was overjoyed at his sudden liberation. Cleveland and Ross were thus fortunately rescued;
and having gained their purpose, the happy Whigs returned to their several homes. William -7
Callaway was especially elated that he had had the good fortune to shoot Wells, who had so badly/
wounded his brother, Richard Callaway, at the ambuscade at the Old Fields. /

z

Shortly after this occurrence, Captain Riddle ventured to make a night raid into the Yadkin Valley,
where on King's Creek, several miles above Wilkesboro, they surrounded

[Page 444]

the house where two of Cleveland's noted soldiers, David and John Witherspoon, resided with therr
parents, and spirited them many miles away in the mountain region on Watauga river, in what is now
Watauga County, were both were sentenced to be shot--blindfolded, and men detailed to do the
fatal work. It was then proposed, if they would take the oath of allegiance to the King, repair to
their home, and speedily return with a certain noble animal belonging to David Witherspoon, known
as "the O'Neal mare," and join the Tory band, their lives would be spared. They gladly accepted
the proposition--with such mental reservations as they thought fit to make. As soon as they reached
home, David Witherspoon mounted his fleet-footed mare, and hastened to Colonel Ben.

Herndon's, several miles down the river, who quickly raised a party, and piloted by the
Witherspoons, they soon reached the Tory camp, taking it by surprise, capturing three, and killing
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Sarah], not engaging willingly in this service, received abuse, and even kicks, from the Tory leader.
Their hunger appeased, they proceeded up New river, mostly along its bed, till they reached Elk
Creek, up which they made their way in the same manner. Colonel Cleveland, meanwhile, managed
unperceived, to break off overhanging twigs, dropping them into the stream to float down as a guide
to his friends, who he knew would make an early pursuit. From the head of the south fork of Elk,
they ascended up the mountains to what has since been known as Riddle's Knob, in what is now
Watauga County, and some fourteen miles from the place of Cleveland's captivity, where they

camped for the night.

Early on that Sabbath morning, Joseph Callaway and his brother-in-law, Berry Toney, wishing to
see Colonel Cleveland on business matters, called at Duncan's, and learmed about the missing
horses, and the pursuit; and at that moment they heard the report of the firing at the upper end of
the plantation, and hastened in that direction, soon meeting Duncan and Shirley in rapid flight, who
could only tell that Richard Callaway had fallen, and Colonel Cleveland was either killed or taken. It
was promptly agreed, that Duncan, Shirley, and Toney should notify the people of the scattered
settlements to meet that afternoon at the Old Fields, while Joseph Callaway should go to his
father’s, close by, mount his horse and hasten to Captain Robert Cleveland's, on Lewis' Fork of the
Yadkin, a dozen miles distant.(*) His brother, William Callaway, started forthwith up the river, and
soon_came across Samuel McQueen and Benjamin Greer, who readty-jomed-him;-and all being
good woodser, ory trail at best they could, till night overtook them when some
distarice atove the mouth of Elk Creek, and about ten miles from the Old Fields. Wiliam Callaway
suggested, that he —

(*) Joseph Callaway was a member fiom Ashe County, in the House of Commons, in 1804
and 1806.

[Page 442]
and McQueen would remain there, while Greer should return to pilot up whatever men may have
gathered to engage in pursuit of the Tories.

By night-fall, Captain Robert Cleveland and others, to the number of twenty or thirty, good and
tried men, who had served under Colonel Cleveland, -had-gathered-at-the-Old-Fields,.determined to
rescue their old commander at every hazard, even though they should follow the Tory party to the
gafes of Nmety Six. Greer made his appearance in good time, and at once they were on the trail of
the enemy.(*) They reached William Callaway and McQueen awhile before day; and as soon as
light began to appear, John Baker jomned Callaway and McQueen, to lead the advance as spies. A
little after sun-rise, having proceeded four miles, they discovered indications of the enemy's camp
on the mountain. But little arrangement was made for the attack; nine men only were n readiness--
the others were apparently some distance behind; and only four or five of these were designated to
fire on the enemy, the rest reserving their shots for a second volley, or any emergencies that might
happen--of these was William Callaway.

Some of the Tories had already breakfasted, while others were busily employed in preparing their
morning meal. Colonel Cleveland was sitting on a large fallen tree, engaged, under compulsion, n
writing passes for the several members of Captain Riddle's party, certifying that each was a good
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concealment, one aiming at Cleveland, who though some little distance in the rear, was yet within
range of their guns. But they generally shot wild--only one shot, that of Zachariah Wells, who aimed
at Callaway, proving effectual, breaking his thigh, when he fell helpless by the fence, and was left for

dead.(*) Duncan and Shirley escaped. Cleveland from his great weight--fully three hundred—
P@ﬁﬁwmme, and would only be too prominent a mark for
Tory bullets, dodged mto the house with several Tories at his heels. Now, flourishing his pistol
rapidly from one to another, they pledged to spare his life and accord him good treatment, if he
would quietly surrender, which he did.

Wells by this time having re-loaded his rifle, made his appearance on the scene, swearing that he
would kill Cleveland; and aiming his gun, the Colonel instantly seized Abigail

(*)Richard Callaway had been grieviously wounded on the head, arms, shoulder, and hand by
Tarleton's cavalry, at Sumter's surprise, Aug. eighteenth, 1780, and left for dead; yet recovered,
though, he had a crippled hand for life. In due time his broken limb, so badly disabled by Wells'
unerring shot, healed up, and he lived many years. He aided in running the boundary Iine from the
White Top Mountains to the Mississippi, and died in Tennessee in 1822.

[Page 440]

Walters who was present, and by dint of his great strength, and under a high state of excitement,
dextrously handled her as a puppet, keeping her between him and his would-be assassin. Wells
seemed vexed at this turn in the affair, and hurled his imprecations on the poor woman, threatening
if she did not get out of the way, that he would blow her through as well, not appearing to realize
that she had as little power as a mouse in the clutches of a ferocious cat. Cleveland getting his eyes
on Captain Riddle, whom he knew, or judged by his appearance, to be the leader, appealed to hm
if such treatment was not contrary to the stipulations of his surrender. Riddle promptly replied that it
was, and ordered Wells to desist from his murderous intent, saying that they would take Cleveland
to Ninety Six, and make money out of his capture. The terrified woman who had been made an
unwilling battery, was now released from Cleveland's grasp as from a vise; and the whole party with
their prisoner and his servant were speedily mounted, and hurried up New river. This stream, so
near its source, was quite shallow, and the Tories traveled mostly in its bed to avoid being tracked,
in case of pursuit. ’

£,
Soon after the Tory party had called at Cutbirth's, on their way down the river, young Daniel bé Au"i
Cutbirth and a youth named Walters, who were absent at the time, returned; and encouraged by

Mrs. Cutbirth [=Elizabeth Willcockson, daughter of n], though
Only fourteen or MMMt a good
spot, and ambuscade Riddle on his return, and perhaps rescue whatever prisoners he might have.
But on the return of the Tory party the next day, they made so much noise, and gave so many
military commands, that led the youthful ambuscaders to conclude that they had received a re-
inforcement, and that it would be rashness for two singlehanded youths to undertake to cope with /
numbers so unequal. So Riddle and his party reached Cutbirth's undisturbed, and ordered dinner
for himself, men, and
[Page 441]
prisoners. One of the Cutbirth girls [probably the older Mary, but possibly her younger sister
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the summer of 1873 and on to Yolo County in 1874. He then
went back to Coulterville by 1880 where he stayed until 1905
before moving to Stanislaus County where he died on October
11, 1936. James, like his brother Enoch, never married.

After Thomas and Isaac had taken out gold worth eight
thousand dollars form their mining claim at Shaws Flat, they
sold it in 1856 for three thousand dollars, Isaac went to
Monterey County and Thomas moved to Calaveras County. In
1961, Thomas moved to Coulterville, Mariposa County, to
continue his search for gold. Franklin had land and a claim of
one hundred and sixty acres near Coulterville. This land was
never developed, and the State took it back in 1886, fifteen
years after his death.

In 1865 a mining claim was filed in the Coulterville Mining
District, Mariposa County. The claim is located on page 83. It is
believed that the principle founders of the claim were Thomas
Mylar, William Alexander, James L Mylar and William Neal
(brother-in-law to James L Mylar). They were the only ones
living in Coulterville at the time of the filing. Under the law a
claim for an individual was limited to one hundred feet in
length. By adding other names to the claim this distant could
be extended. The other names on the claim were all related to
the Mylar name and it became a family venture. The other
people were Isaac Mylar, and his wife Talitha, Thomas’ wife
Sarah, Robert Orton, and John Hunt. This claim was sold in
sections between 1868 and 1872 to William Wiggins.

William Wiggins lived in the Plaza Hotel in San Juan, Monterey
County. His wealth came from his father. He was active in
buying and selling mining claims. This closeness to the Mylar
family in San Juan must have made it profitable for all
concerned. In 1871 he purchased a 1/11th share in the San
Juan Mining Company that had mining claims in Tuolumne
County. Thomas Mylar was the person that founded this
company and the Mylar Mining Company.

William Alfred Stribling was born in Kentucky in 1831. He
married Henrietta Mylar about 1858 and they moved to
Mariposa County. Henrietta was a midwife for most of the
families from Coulterville to Snelling in Merced County. Alfred,
according to the voter registration and census, worked in
between two occupations, that of a blacksmith and a farmer. In
1882 he worked on the Wheeler Ranch as a blacksmith. The
family lived most of their lives at Granite Springs, Mariposa
County on a one hundred and sixty acre ranch. Granite Springs
is eight miles west of Couilterville on highway 132. Stribling was
tall for his time period. On the 1894 voter registration William
is listed as five feet, eleven inches, blue eyes and gray hair.
William died in 1899 and is buried at Granite Springs.

Henrietta’s first husband, William Alfred Stribling, died in 1899.
In April of 1903 the children gave up all claim to the Stribling
property in Mariposa County in favor of their mother Henrietta.
She married John Hopkins in Merced on November 26, 1903.
John was a lazy person and did not help around the farm, so
one day Henrietta told him to leave and not to return. Later she
divorced John,

Her third marriage was to Erastus Kelsey in Stockton on April
28, 1915; she was seventy-three and he was eighty-eight.
Erastus had been a large rancher in the Snelling area and was
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Franklin Mylar had red hair as did other children in the Mylar
family. He moved from Kentucky to Quincy, Illinois, where he
met Nancy Waggaman and they were married there. After the
birth of their first child in Quincy, Franklin and his wife Nancy,
purchased land in Fulton County in 1836. About 1842 they
moved to Gentry County, Missouri. Nancy died during this time.
Franklin in 1846 was employed to mark out new county roads.
By 1848, he was a bondsman.

Tymandra Brooks lived in nearby Platte County, Missouri, and
had lost her husband in 1832. Tymandra was the daughter of
Henry Brooks and Elizabeth Jett of Kentucky. It was a second
marriage for both Franklin and Tymandra.

James Letcher Mylar married Mary Ann Neal on November 27,
1848, in Gentry County, Missouri. A year later Isaac Mylar
married Talitha Wooley on October 11, 1849, while living in
Gentry County.

Five years after Rachel and B. C. went to Oregon. The gold rush
in California began in the spring of 1849. As word spread it was
almost one continuous line of wagons moving west, Most of
these people left their worldly goods behind and went to
California. The majority lost everything; some even their lives.
By June of 1850 the excitement of gold and the great surge
diminished.

The records in Missouri show that in 1850, Rachel’s five
brothers Enoch, Franklin, James L, Israel and Isaac Mylar
started for California and arrived in September. They were
looking for new lands to settle and hoped to find enough gold
to bring their families west. Isaac started mining in Hangtown,
Placer County. Then he made his way to Calaveras County
where Israel was located. The brothers mined with some
success and in 1851 returned to Missouri. The brothers traveled
to San Francisco and boarded a ship for Panama, and crossed
the Isthmus. A ship took them to New Orleans and up the
Mississippi to St. Louis. Then they traveled overland to Gentry
County, Missouri.

Upon their return in 1851 they told of their experiences and
observations in California. The reports were received with
mixed emotions. The Mylar families started preparing for the
trip to California, but some could not make the trip on such
short notice for the coming year. Half came in 1852 and the
rest in 1854, On April 21, 1854, before they left for California,
Enoch married Lydia (Neal) Sale of Gentry County. Lydia Neal
was born in Illinois on June 5, 1830. She was a sister to Mary
Ann Neal who married James L Mylar. Lydia had married
Samuel Sale about 1849, and they were divorced before the
birth of her first child. It was the second marriage for both
Enoch and Lydia.

Once again the families were on the move, this time, to try
their skills at panning for gold and a new future. The trip from
Missouri to California took five months. John Mylar was the only
one to stay in Missouri.

The wagon train consisted of forty wagons that gathered at the
county seat in Albany, Gentry County. Oxen pulled the wagons.
They made their way along the Missouri River and crossed at
Nebraska City, Nebraska, then to Fort Kearney in Nebraska.
After gathering supplies the wagon train made its way along
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in Gentry County in 1850.

James and Henrietta traveled with the boys form Illinois to
Missouri. The family settled in Gentry County where the boys
were farmed. Since no gravesite has been found it is believed
Henrietta and James were buried on the farm. When the boys
moved their families to California, John stayed in Missouri. Did
he stay to take care of his mother? One family story is that
James was a storekeeper when he moved to Missouri.

The children purchased land in Illinois and again in Missouri,
Their father James does not appear on the land records or
census records of that time. In an interview in California in
1890 Isaac states that James and Henrietta moved the family
to Gentry County, Missouri in about 1840. James and Henrietta
were probably buried on the farm in Gentry County.

The Mexican War started in May 1846. Isaac Mylar, age
nineteen, joined the army on April 27, 1847, in Gentry County,
Missouri. His older brother Enoch, age thirty-one joined on May
2, 1847, also in Gentry County. They were both mustered-in at
Independence, Missouri, on June 12, 1847. Enoch became a
corporal in Company H, Third Regiment, Missouri Mounted
Infantry, and Isaac was a private in the same unit.

The 3rd Missouri Mounted Infantry marched eight hundred
miles to Santa Fe from the middle of July to the middle of
August. The trail went across desert and into the high
mountains passes which were nearly impassable. Most of the
men were sick, and to survive, they had to eat their mules.

On November 8, 1847, the 3rd Missouri Mounted Volunteers
moved into El Paso to block any invasion by Mexicans to the
north. The war was over on February 2, 1848, but General
Price did not get official notice until April 15, 1848.

March 1st General Price moved his men including, part of the
3rd Missouri, toward Chihuahua, which was two hundred and
fifty miles away. On the way he met some Mexican officials, but
did not believe or trust them when they said the war was over.
On March 7th the Americans rode into Chihuahua. The last
battle was at Santa Cruz de Rosales on the 16th.

After receiving word, on the 15th of April, General Price pulled
back and by May 16th was in El Paso. The troops were moved
to Santa Fe on the 4th of August, and by the 8th of October
returned in triumph to Brunswick, Missouri. These were the last
of the volunteer units to return home.

Enoch and Isaac were discharged from the service at
Independence, Missouri, October 19, 1848. On January 29,
1887, and Act was passed that gave pensions to those who
served in the Mexican War. Isaac applied on March 31, 1887,
and was granted a pension of twenty doltars a month. File
number C-14666.

After the war Enoch and Isaac return to Gentry County, Enoch
found that his wife had been unfaithful, so he divorced her and
kept the two children, Henrietta and James. He was judge of
the election in November 1849, and August 1850. He, also,
served on the Grand Jury in April, 1850. James L Mylar became
constable of Jackson Township on September 6, 1848. John
Hunt was a gunsmith living in Gentryviile, Missouri.
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we had first driven them. I found two of my men scalped, who
were brought in. I had six dead and five wounded.

I intend following then this evening some distance to ascertain
their route and strength. I can say that about fifty of my men
fought bravery equal to any men in the world and had not the
garrison been so nigh as a place of safety for the bashful. The
enemy has no doubt as many men killed as myself. They left
two dead and I saw two carried off. The only advantage they
have gained is our horses

Major John Adair

General James Wilkinson, November 6, 1792, at 7:00 PM to the
War Department

As this affair happened near to and insight of Fort St. Clair, you
may inquire as to why the commanding officer did not support
Major Adair? The garrison is posted for defense and not
offence.

General James Wilkinson

Those Kentucky Militia who were killed November 6, 1792, are
Lieut. Job Hale, Sergeant Matthew English, and Privets John
Williams, Isaac Jett, Joseph Clinton, and Robert Bolling. In
1903 they still had the wooden markers. Later a granite
monument with bronze tablet now marks the site of the battle
near Eaton, Ohio. The graves are located near a tree called
Whispering Oak.

JAMES AND HENRIETTA (JETT) MYLAR

James Mylar Jr. was born in South Carolina the son of James
Mylar Sr. and Rachel Wilcoxson. His family moved to Kentucky
in about 1785 and settled in Fayette County. He appears on the
1800 census in Clark County. James and Henrietta Jett were
married in Madison County, Kentucky, on October 2, 1806.

Henrietta’s parents were Isaac Israel and Mary Jett. Henrietta’s
birth is calculated as 1789. She was born in Virginia. It is
believed that her family lived in the same place and in 1792
this area became the State of Kentucky

Twelve children were born to James and Henrietta: Enoch,
Franklin, Israel, Richard, Fanny, Mary, Rachel, Julia, James L,
John, Isaac, and Thomas. In about 1830 the family moved to
Illinois where the youngest son, Thomas, was born in 1832.
This family is hard to trace. James is believed to have been a
merchant and/or leased property, which did not show on the
land records. Except for the 1800 James does not appear on
any census.

In 1837 the brothers Enoch, Franklin, Israel, and James L
purchased land in Fulton County, Iilinois. John Hunt was born in
Ohio and moved to Illinois where he married Julia Ann Mylar.
They lived in Fulton County. Israel married Mary Walters on
June 17, 1837, in Knox County. Five years later in 1842 the
brothers moved to Jackson Township, Gentry County, Missouri.
The courthouse burned down in 1884, destroying all the
records, but the census reports show the brothers were farmers
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camp presented rather a discouraging appearance. Not more
than six or eight horses were saved; some twenty or thirty lay
dead on the ground. The loss of the enemy remains unknown:
the bodies of two Indians were found among the dead horses.
We gathered up our wounded, six in number, took them to the
fort, where a room was assigned them as a hospital, and their
wounds dressed by Surgeon Boyd, of the regular army. The
wound of one man, John James, consisted of littie more than
the loss of his scalp. It appeared from his statement, that in
the heat of the action, he received a blow on the side of his
head with a war-club, which stunned so as to barely knock him
down, when two or three Indiana fell to skinning his head, and
in a very short time took from him an unusually large scalp,
and in the, hurry of the operation, a piece of one of his ears. He
recovered, and I understood, some years afterwards, that he
was then living.

By sunset on the day of the action, we had some kind of rough
coffins prepared for the slain. For the satisfaction of surviving
friends, I will name them, and state that in one grave, some
fifty pace's west of the site of Fort St. Clair, are the remains of
Captain Job Hale next to him, on his left, we laid our orderly
sergeant, Matthew English; then followed the four privates,
Robert Bowling, Joseph Clinton, Isaac Jett and John Williams
Dejection and even sorrow hung on the countenances of every
member of the escort, as we stood around or assisted in the
interment of these, our fellow comrades. Hale was a noble and
brave man, fascinating in his appearance and deportment as an
officer. It was dusk in the evening before we completed the
performance of this melancholy duty. What a change! The
evening before, nothing within the encampment was to be seen
or heard but, life and animation. Of those not on duty, some
were measuring their strength and dexterity at athletic
exercises; some nursing, rubbing and feeding their horses;
others cooking. But look at us now, and behold the ways,
chances and uncertainties of war. I saw and felt the contrast
then, and feel it still, but am unable further to describe it here!”

Library of Congress — American Memory - (36 335)
Major Adair’s letter to General James Wilkinson, Fort St. Clair,
November 6th, 1792,

This morning about the first appearance of day, the enemy
attacked my camp within sight of this post. The attack was
sudden and the enemy came on with a degree of courage that
bespoke them as warriors. Some of my men were hand-to-
hand combat before we retreated about eighty yards to a kind
of stockade.

We made a main push and the enemy retreated, taking all our
horses except five or six. We drove them about six hundred
yards through our camp, where they again made a stand, and
we fought them, two of my men were shot dead. I received
information that the enemy was about to flank us on the right
and on turning that way I saw sixty of them running to that
point. I then ordered my men to retreat, which they did with
deliberation, heartily cursing Indians, who pursued us close to
our camp where we again fought them until they gave way and
when they retreated, our ammunition was nearly expended,
although we had been supplied from garrison in the course of
the action. I ordered my men into the garrison to draw
ammunition. I returned a few minutes later to the hill to which
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supplies from Fort Washington to Fort Jefferson. Under his
command was one hundred Kentucky, mounted rifleman to
help escort a train of packhorses to Fort Jefferson. They could
then make a trip from Fort Washington past Fort St. Clair, to
Fort Jefferson, and return in six days, encamping each night
under the wall of one of these military posts for protection.
Adair and his men had completed their assignment and were on
the return trip, and had arrived at Fort St. Clair the evening of
November 5th, and camped outside the fort.

The major battle at Fort St. Clair occurred at dawn on
November 6, 1792, when two hundred and fifty Indians from
several tribes led by Miami Chief Little Turtle attacked one
hundred Kentucky mounted militiamen under Major John Adair.
At the end of the skirmish, that began with close fighting and
ended in a running battle, twenty-five horses had been killed,
one hundred and sixty had been taken away, and the bodies of
two Indians and six soldiers were found on the battlefield. Isaac
Jett was one of those killed. There are indications that Stephen
Jett may have been with Isaac Jett when he was killed at Fort
St. Clair in 1792. At sunset the soldiers were buried a short
distance west of the fort.

The story below is from the book, Historical Collections of Ohio,
by Henry Howe, 1851, pages 422 - 423

Joel Collins was one of the survivors of the Battle at Fort St.
Clair on November 6, 1792. This is a letter from Judge Joel
Collins sent to his friend James M'Bride dated, June 20, 1843.

The judge said: “The chief of the band of Indians being
informed of our position, by his runners, concluded that by a
night attack, he could drive us out of our encampment.
Accordingly he left his ambush, and a short time before day-
break, on Tuesday morning, the Indians, by a discharge of
rifles and raising the hideous yells for which they are
distinguished, made a simultaneous attack on three sides of the
encampment: leaving that open next to the fort. The horses
became frightened, and numbers of them broke from their
fastenings. The camp, in consequence of this, being thrown into
some confusion, Major Adair retired with his men, and formed
them in three divisions, just beyond the shine of the fires, on
the side next the fort; and while the enemy were endeavoring
to secure the horses and plunder the camp-which seemed to be
their main object-they weres in turn attacked by us, on their
right, by the captain and his division; on the left, by Lieut.
George Madison, and in their center, by Lieut. Job Hale, with
their respective divisions. The enemy, however, were
sufficiently strong to detail a fighting party, double our
numbers, to protect. those plundering the camp and driving off
the horses, and as we had left the side from the fort open to
them, they soon began to move off, taking all with them.

As soon as the day dawn afforded light sufficient to distinguish
a white man from on Indian, there ensued some pretty sharp
fighting, so close, in some instances, as to bring in use the war-
club and tomahawk. Here Lieut. Hale was killed and Lieut.
Madison-wounded. As the Indians retreated, the white men
hung on their rear, but when we pressed them too close, they
would turn and drive us back. In this way a kind of running
right kept up until after sun-rising, when we lost sight of the
enemy and nearly all our horses, some where about where the
town of Eaton now stands. On returning from the pursuit, our
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